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DETERMINATION OF VIOLATION

A. INTRODUCTION

l. This is a civil administrative enforcement action Instituted pursuant 10 Section 3008(a)(1) of
the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act ("ReRA"), as amended, 42 V.S.c.
§ 6928(a)(I). and the Consolidated Rules of Practice Govcming the Administrative
Assessment of Civil P~'Tlallies and the RevocationITcnn;nation or Suspension of Pennit" 40
CF.R. Part 22. Complainant is the United States Environmental Protection Agency, Region
IX ("EPA"). Respondent is Concorde Gannent Manufacturing Corp., based in Saipan
("Respondent"" or "COMC").

2. Respondent owned and operated a gannent factory for the production ofclothing at Lower
Base. Saipan. in the Northern Mariana Islands (the "Facility"). The manufacturing process
includes cUlling, silk-screening and the sewing assembly of the clothing products. The
Facility's EPA Identification No. is TIROOOO83204. COMC ceased operations at this
location on or about December 2006.

3. This Determination of Violation, Dlmpliance Order and Notice of Right to Request a
H.,aring ("Complaint") serves as notice that EPA, on the basis ofinfonnation available to it,
has det.,nnined that Respondent violated Section 3002 of RCRA, 42 U,S,C. § 6922, Section
3004.42 U.s,C. § 6924, Section 3005. 42 US.c. § 6925, and r(~b'\Jlations adopted pursuant
thereto. This Complaint seeks to establish the amount of civil penalty tlult Respondent must
pay for violations alleged herein.

B. JURISDICTION

4. Respondent is a ''person'' as defined in Section 1004(15) ofReRA, 42 U.S,c. § 6903(15),
and 40 C.F,R. §§ 260.10 and 270.2.

5. Respondent was the "owner and operator" of a "fa~ili[y" as definl'l1 in 40 C.F.R. §§ 260.10
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and 270.2 at the time the violatIOns described herein were discovered.

6. Respondent was engaged in the "storage" of hazardous wastes as defined in 40 CF.R.
§ 260.10 at the time the viOlatlonS described herein were discovered.

7. Respondent was a "SllUlll Quantity Generator" of hazardous waste as defined in 40 C.F.R.
§ 260.10 at the time the violations described herein were discovered.

8. At the Facility. through its silk-screening and printing operations, Respondent generated
paint waste and solvents (RCRA waste code DOO I) and solvent contaminated rags which are
"hazardous wastes" as defined in Section 1()()4(5) of RCRA. 42 U.s.C. § 6903(5) and 40
CF.R. §§ 260.10 and 261.3. Respondenllllso gencraled used oil.

9. Respondcn~ is. therefore. subject to the federal regulallolls adopted pllrsuant to SeclLons 3002
and 3004ofRCRA. 42 U.S,c. §§ 6922 and 6924.

10. Federal regulations establishing generolor standards, 40 CF.R. Part 262, and cstabhshmg
owner and operator standards, 40 CF.R. Part 265, be.:ame e(leetive on November 19, 1980.
Federal regulations governing the hazardous waste permit program, 40 CF.R Part 270,
Ix:came elTecll'·e April 1, 1983.

11. Oil March 5, 2004 EPA conducted a RCRA inspe<:tion at the Facility.

12 Based on the March 5, 200-i inspection and documents submined by Respondent thereaf\er.
as further descnbed latl-T III tlus Complaint, EPA deterInllled that Respondent has Violated lhe
following regulations: 40 C.F.R. § 262.11; 40 C.F.R § 262.34; 40 C.F.R. § 262.30; 40
C.F.R. § 262.12; 40 C.F.R. § 262.20; and 40 CF.R. § ::!70.1.

13. Respondent. in violatmg the regulations cited above, violated Subtille C of RCRA, and
therefore is subject to the pQ.wers vested in the EPA Administrator by Section 3008 of
RCRA. 42 U.S.c. § 6928.

14. S""tion 3008 of ReRA. 42 U.S.c. § 6928, authorizes the EPA Administrator to issue orders
requiring compliance Immediately or Wilhlll a spe<:i fied time for violalion of any reqUirement
ofSublitle C of RCRA, S..etion 3001 or RCRA £1. X!2., 42 U.S.c. § 6921 £1..3.ll.

15. The Admini;JrJtor has delegated the authority under Scction 3008 of RCRA. 42 l'.S.C.
§ 6928, to the EPA RegiOlllll Adminislrutor for Region IX, pursuant to Ddeplion number
8·9·A. who has redelegated thIS authonty to the Dllector of the Waste Managemt:1II DlvislOn
pursuant to Ddegation num~rR9 12800·t
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C. VIOLATIONS

COUNT I
Failure to Make a Hazardous Waste Detennination

16. Paragraphs I through 15 aoove are incorporated herein by this reference as if they were set
forth here in their entirety.

17.40 C.F.R. § 262.11 requires that a person who generates a solid waste, as defined in 40
C.F.R. § 261.2. must determine if that waste is a hazardous waste.

18. At the time of the inspection, Respondent had failed to determine if several solid wastes
streams were hazardous, as detailed in the following paragraphs.

19. In the "new addition" area of the print shop. the EPA Inspector observed a 55-gallon drum on
a pallet, with the word "thinner" written on the side. Respondent's employees informed the
EPA Inspector that the drum contallled "wastc paint thiMer."

20. Respondent failed to determine if the 55-gallon drum of waste paint thinner was hazardous.

21. Outside of the screen printing building, the EPA Inspedor observed 15 to 20 large plastic
garbage bags containing liquid-saturated rags, open cans partially filled with liquid. and
approximately 10 one· to fi\e-gallon buckets containing liquid.

22. The Inspector noted a strong smell of solvents from the contents of the bags.

23. Respondent's employees informed the Inspector that the rags were contaminated with paint
thirmer and methylene chlonde, that the cans contained "waste paint thinner." and that the
buckets contained waste paint:md waste paint thinner.

24. Respondent failed to detennme if the contents of the 15 to 20 garbage bags, the cans and the
buckets were hazardous.

25, Respondent provided EPA with copies of the 1\faterial Safety Data Sheets (MSDS '5) for the
paint thinner that Resporuknt uses at the Facility. The paint thinner has It flash point of 102
degret'S Fahrenheit. A sohd waste e;~hibits the characteristic of ignitabtlity if it is a liquid
with a flash point of less tha:l 140 degrees Fahrenheit. The paintthinncr in the garbage bags
therefore was a hazardous waste under 40 §§ CFR 261.3 and 261.21.

26. Methylene chloride is a listed hazardous waste (FOOl, Foo2, V080) under 40 CFR §§ 261.31
and 261.33.

27. Therefore, Respondent fatka 10 make a hazardous waste determination, and violated 40
C.F.R. § 262.11.

3



CQUl'-T II
Failure to Meet Container Managemelll Requirements

28. Paragraphs I through 27 above arc incorporated herein by this reference as if they .... ere set
forth here in their entirety.

29. 40 C.F.R. § 265.173(a) requires that containers holding haz.ardous waste Shall always be
dosed during transfer and sfOrage, except when it is necessary to add or remove waste.

30. During the eEl on March 5, 2004. the EPA Inspector observoo several cans ofwas!e paint
thinner which were open at a time when waste was neither being added nor removed from
those conta'nCl'S.

31. 40 e.F.R. ~ 265. I 73{b) states that a container holding hazardollS waste must not be opened,
handled, or siored in a manner which may rupture lhe container or cause ;110 leak.

32. During the eEl the EPA Inspector noted that haz.ardous waste. consisting of solvclll­
contaminated rags and o]X'!l containers half-filled with paint waste. was placed inside plastic
garbage bags, .....·hich are likely fO rupture allowing the hazardous waste to leak..

33. Therefore Respondent violated 40 C.F.R. § 265.173.

COUNT III
Offering Wast~ to a Transporter and TSD Without an EPA ID number

34. Paragraphs 1 through 33 above arc incorporated herein by thiS reference as if they were set
fOM here in their cnllrety.

35.40 C.F.R. § 262.12 states that a generator must not offer his hazardous waste to transponers
or to treatment. storage, or disposal ("TSD") facihties that have not received an EPA
identification number.

36. Records provided by the Respondoot indicate that Respondelll delivered 1,477 pounds of
haz.ardous waste, consisting of rags contaminatoo with waste pailll thinner, methylene
chloride, and waste paint, to the Common .....·ea1th Pon Authority for transport and disposal.

37. Respondent shipped the haz.ardous waste at issue on at Ie-1st four occilsions: September 30,
2003. October 2, 2003; October 7. 2003; and November 13, 2003.

38. At the time orthe shipments, the Conunonwe:alth Pon Authority did not hal'e an EPA lD
number lIS a tral\~porter or TSD.

39. Th(,"re~)re Rl."Sp.Jndcnt \ (olated ..0 C F.R § 262, l2(c)
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COUNTIY
Failure to Prepare a Hazardous Waste Manifest

-10. Paragraphs I through 39 above are incorporated herein by this reference as if they were set
fonh here in their entirety.

41.40 C-F.R, § 262.20 requires that a generator who transpons, or offers for trnnspon a
ha~rdous waste for offsite treatment, storage, or disposal must prepare a Manifest (OMB
Control number 2050-0039) on EPA Form 8700-22 ("hazardous waste manifest"),

42, Respondent failed to prepare a hazardous waste manifest for any of the 1,477 pounds of
hazardous waSle.

43, Respondent shipped the hazardous waste at issue on at least four occasions.

44. Therefore Respondent violated 40 C.F.R. § 262.20.

COUNTY
Failure to Ensure that Employees are Familiar with Waste Handling Procedures

45. Paragraphs 1 through 44 above arc incorporated herein by this reference as if they werc set
fonh hcrc in their entirety.

46. Respolldent's records llldlCate that Respondent is a small quantity generator who generates
grealer than 100 kg ofhazamous waste in a calendar month. Respondent does not have
interim status nor a RCRA penni!. 40 C.F.R. § 262.34(d} requires that sueh a generator
ensure that all employees are thoroughly familiar with proper waste handling procedures.
Proper handling of hazardous waste requires closing containers when not adding or removing
waste, as provided hy 40 C-F.R. § 265.173(a); labeling ofcontainers with the words
"hazardous waste" and the accumulation date. as provided by 40 C.F.R. § 262.34(d)(4); and
use of containers not likely to nJplUrc, under 40 C.F.R. § 265. I 73{b).

47. At the time of the inspection, the Inspector obscr.-ed open containers holding waste paint
thinner when waste was neither beill£.",ddndrll(.r'i'C1nQ~~T1'r..jn<'lw.;\M~'IJ~'"\.r.k.<"'OmQ.~_

pbstLc gJrb.lge~'o,,~s C\lnt~tl1lng SOIH'tll-satmat.:<1 rags and "pen open c~n, ~",I buckets
h"lding "'~,tc soh mt;. The,e containers were nol prof't'rl: bbded and the bags wen: hkdy
to nlpture amI allow ha.cardou" ,,'astes to leak

-I~ .\t tM(' til1l~ oftl1(' in'l'e;;tion. Relro"Jcnt"~ employees \\'ue noT famtliar wiTh pmpcr ""aste
h<loJli\lr procedure~
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COUNT VI
Storage of Hazardous Waste Without a Permit

50. Paragraphs l through 49 above are incorporated herein by this referellce lIS If they "ere set
fOl1h here in their entirely,

5 I. 40 C.F.R. § 270.1 (e) requires each person owning or operating a ReRA hazardous waste
storage facihty to have a pcm1i1.

52. At the time of the inspeclion, Respondent did not have a peffilit or grant of interim status to
store hazardous ,,'aste under 40 C.F.R. § 270 l(c).

53. Documents submitted hy the Respondent Indicate thal Respondent is a small quantity
generator of hazardous waste.

54. 40 C.F.R, § 262.34(d) provides that small quantity generators of hazardous "'ute may
aceumulate hazardous waste onsitl' for a limited period of tIme. WIthout a pemllt or grant of
interim status. provided the generator complies with the reqUirementS "'hlch are set forth or
referenced by 40 C.F.R. § 262.34. Failure to romply with the lime ltmits or any of the
requirements set forth in or referenced by 40 C.F.R. § 262.34 subJecls the generator to the
permitting requirements of 4{) e.F.R. § 270.1{c).

55. Respondent violated several of the requIrements set forth 0\ ".,fereneed in 40 C.F.R,
§ 262.34, listed b<::low.

56. Labeling "lIazardous Wute." 40 C.F.R. § 262.34(d){4) requires that generators" Ito
accumulate hazardous waste onsite without a permit or grant oftnterim starns shallillbel
containers with the words "hazardous waste" and the date each period of accumulation
begins. Generators who fail to label containeo of hazardous waste as required fail to meet
the requirements of 40 C.F.R. § 262.34(d) and are subject to the permitting requirements of
40 C.F.R. § 270.1(e).

57. During the eEl on March 5, 2004, outside thescrecn printing area, the EPA Inspector noted
25 large trash bags containing hazardous waste without the l"Cl1uircd labeling.

58. During the eEl on March 5, 2004. in the "new addition" twa of the rrint shop, the EPA
Inspector observed a 55-gallon drum contaimng "aste paint thmner. RCRA "aste code
DOOI. that was not prop..-rly labeled.

59. Respondent's storage of hazardous waste without labeling the containers as "Hazardous
Waste" and the dale of hazardous waste aceumolalion did not comply with the labeling
requlr:mcnts of 40 C F.R. § 202.34(d (4). Therefore. Respondent has \'iolated 40 C F.R
~ 270 He)
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60. Failure 10 M~t Container Managcmenl Rcquiremenl!i. 40 C.F.R, § 262.34 requires that
small quamity generatorn who accumulate hazardous waste onsile without a permit or grant
ofilllerim slatus comply with the requirements of 40 C.F.R. § 265.173. 40 C.F.R.
§ 265. 173(a) requires that comainers holding hazardous waste shall always be closed during
transfer and storage, except when it is necessary to add or remove waste. 40 C.F.R.
§ 265. I73(b) states that a container holding hazardous waste must not be opened, handled. or
stored in a manner which may rupture the container or cause it to leak.

61. During the CEI on March 5, 2004, the EPA Inspector observed several cans of waste paint
thinner which were open at a time when waste was neither being added nor removed from
those containers.

62. During the. eEl the EPA Inspector noted that hazardous waste, consisting of open containers
half-filled with paint waste, was placed Inside plastic garbage bags. which are likely to
rupture allowing the hazardous waste to leali:.

63, Respondent's failure to close containers ofhazardous waste, and failure to package
hazardous waste appropriately, violated 40 C.F.R. § 265.173. Therefore, Respondenl has
violated 40 C.F.R. § 270.I(c).

D. CIVIL PENALTY

64. Sedion 3008(g) of RCRA. 42 U.S.c. § 6928(g), as amended by the Debt Collection
Improvement Act of 1996. 40 C.F.R. Part 19. authorizes a civil penally of up to TWENTY­
SEVEN THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($27,500,00) per day for each
violation of Subtitle C of RCRA. 42 U.S.c. § 6921 el~. occurring on or after January 31.
1997 but before March 16.2004. Therefore, Complainant requests that the Administrator
assess a civil penalty against Respondent of up to $27.500 per day for each day during which
a violation cited in the above outlined Counts continued. -

Count I hjlure to Make a Hazardous Waste pctenninatjoD

EPA detennined Ihat this violation resulted in significant risk to hwnan health and the
environment and demonstrates substantial noncompliance wilh the applicable requirentcnt.
Respondent was in violation ofthis requirement for at leaSI one day, the day of the ins]JC<'tion.

Coug! II, Fajlure to Meet Container Management Requirements

EPA detennined that this violation resulted in significant risk to human health and the
environment and demonstrates significant noncompliance with the applicable requir",menl.
Respondent was in violation for at least one day. lloe day ofth", inspection.

•
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CQlmll1! - Offering Waste to a Trnn..oorter ~nd ISP without an EPA ID numher

EPA determined that thIs vIOlation resulted in substantial risk to human he~lth and the
",nvironment and demonstrates substantial noncompliance with the applicable requirement.
Respondent offered hazardous waste to a lransporter without an EPA identification number on at
least three separute occasions, or at least four days.

Count IV - Failure to Prepare a Hazardous Waste Manifest

EPA determined that this violation resulted in substantial risk to human health and the
environment and demonstrat<:s substantial noncompliance with the applicable requirement.
Respondent failed to prepare a hazardous waste manifest on at least three separate occasions. or
at least four days.

Count V - failure to Maintain ProPer Reoords

EPA detenmned that this violation resulted in significant risk to human he~lth and the
environment and demonslrates Significant noncompliance wilh the applicable requirement. The
Facilily was in violat ion for at least one day. Ihe <by of the inspeclJon.

Count VI - Stotage of Hazardous Waste wjthout a Pennit

EPA determtned that this \·iolation resulted in significant nsk to human health and the
environment and demonstrates signiiicant noncompliance .... ith the applicable reqUirement
Respondent was in VIOlation orlhls requirement for at least one day. the day ofthl' mspcCIJOIl,

II. NOTICE OF RIGHT TO REOUESI A t1EAR[NG

A. PUBliC HEARrNG •

•

65. In accordance with Section 3008(b) of RCBA. 42 U.s.c. § 6928{b). the Compliance Order
set forth hCTetn shal1 become final unless Respondent files an Answer and request for public
heanng in wnting no later than thirty (30) days after thc Effective Date of this Complaint
with the Regional Hearing Clerk, United States Environmental Protc.:tion Agenq-. RegIOn
IX. 75 Hawthorne St, San Franclsoo. California 94105. A copy of the Ans.....er and request
for hearing and copies of all other documents rclattng to these pro~eedlngs filed wnh the
Regional Heanng Clerk should be sent to Hamson KaIT (ORC'·3). ASSistant Regional
Counsel at the SOIme addrC'Ss.

66. The Answer must cka:1y and dtrectly admit. deny or explain each of the factual allegations
contJ.In~ in the Complaint with regard to which Respondent has any koovdedge, A fatlul'"
t:l admit. deny or e:<plam an} materia! fa.:t or allet3tion con'alned In thiS Complaint Will
constitute an admISSion of the a\leptivn. Wher';l the Respondent has no bo.... ledge ot a
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~mcular factualillegatlon and so Slate$, the a1leg,auoo is deemed denIed. The Answn- must
.150 state (I) the eircumslll'lreS or argutneIl15 which~ alleged to constItute the grounds of
defense. (2) the faets "'hich Respondent intends to place at issue, (3) the basis for opposing
My proposed rehef, and (4) \\tIether a beanog IS requested.

67. IfResponde.u falls to file a "Tittf'l'\ AICI"er WIthin thirty (JO) days ofthe EfTedi~'e Date of
thiS Complamt, Respondent may be found '0 defaull Respondf'l'\t's default WIll COftSlilllte an
admIssion of III fGC'tS alleged m the Compiamt and I wal~'er ofRespondcnt's nght to a
heanng.

68. If Respondent requests a public hearing. it "'ill be held in a location deterrruned in
accordance willi the Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing the Administrative
Assessment of Civil Penalties, Issuance ofComplianee or Corrective Action Orders, and the
Revo<:ationn-ermmutioo or Suspension of Pennits, 40 C.F.R. Part 22, a copy of which
3coompames the Compl.mt. The hearing will be conducted in accordance "'Ith the
provisions ofthe AdmlOlsttat1\'e P~ure Act, 5 U.S.C. § 552 "'.K1I ,and 40 C.F.R. Part
22 Respondent may request a hearing 011 any material fact alleged m the amtplaint. or on
the appropriateness of any proposed penalty, compluUlce or c:orrectl\e action order.

69 Pursuant to 40 CF R. § 227(c) ofthc Consolidated Rules ofJ>najce, ""hrre a pleadmg or
OOt;wnent IS sened by first class maJl or cornrnerrilll delhery senice, but not by O\~glll or
~-daysenice, five (S) da)'$ shall bt' added to !he l1me allowed by these rules for the filmi
of a responsl\'e plndmg or document.

B INFORMAL SETILEMENT

70 Whether or 1I0t Respondenl requests a hearing, Respondent may oonfer Illfonnally with EPA
to dlS(:uss the alleged facts. violations and amount of the pmalty. An infonnal conference
does not, however, affect Respondent's obhgalton to file a "Titten Answer within thiny (30)
days ofthc Effective Date ofthe Complaint The infonnal conference pro<:edure may be
pursued simultaneously with the adjudicatory hearing procedure.

71. Any senlement reached as a result of an infOrmlll conferenc:c will be anbodied in a written
Consent Agreement and Final Order. The issuance of the Consent Agreement and Final
Order will constitute wa.i~·erofRespondent'$ right to a bearing on any mailer to which
Respondent has 51lpwated.

12 If a settlemm\ cannot bt' te:lIChed through an Informal oonfcrmce. the filing of a "'Titten
Answerv.1thin thll'ty (30) lbys of the EffectIve Date ofttus Complalnl wall pRSa"'e
Respondent's righl to a heanng.

7) EPA encourages all p:utles against ",hom a ptMl~' is proposed to tllplore the possib.llIyof
settlmtenl. To request an mfo~ conference. Respondent should o;;mllCl H:unson KarT
ORC·3. ASSIstant Regional Counsel. Office ofRegJonal Counsel, alUte abo\'e address,
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telephone number 1) 972-3 39,

EE

~. Th ffectlve D e" of hi Comp] inl i the ate ofServ'c. eI"'r 'c i . mp t v hen the
return mail receip is ign d br the Resp "dem r d] authorized repre ntati e f·
R spondent. in accor . nee with the provisions of 40 C. .R. §, 2 .5(b and _2.7 c).

.. .
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CERTIFICATION OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that the original of the foregoing Determination of Violation, Compliance Orde.-,
and Notice of Right to Request a Hearing was filed with the Regional Hearing Clerk, Region IX,
and that a copy was scnt, along with a copy of40 C.F.R. Part 22 Consolidated Rules of Practice
Governing the Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties and the RevlX:ation or Suspension
of Permits. certified mail, return receipt requested, to:

Steven r. Pixley, Esq.
Second Floor. CIe Centre
P.O. Box 7757 S.V.R,B
Salpan M.P, 96950

Hazardous Wastc Management Division

11


